Santa Barbara City College College Planning Council Tuesday, September 16, 2014 3:00 – 4:30 p.m. A218C

Minutes

PRESENT:

L. Gaskin, Chair, President

L. Auchincloss, President, CSEA

P. Butler, Chair, Planning & Resources Committee

R. Else, Sr. Director, Institutional Assessment,

Research & Planning (non-voting)

G. Maynetto, President, Associated Student Government (non-

J. McPheter, Classified Staff Representative

K. Monda, President, Academic Senate

D. Nevins, Academic Senate Representative

C. Salazar, Classified Staff Representative

P. Stark, Academic Senate Representative

J. Sullivan, VP, Business Services

L. Vasquez, VP, Academic Senate

J. Walker, Advancing Leadership Committee Representative

D. Watkins, Advancing Leadership Committee Representative

ABSENT:

P. Bishop, VP, Information Technology

P. English, VP, Human Resources

1.0 CALL TO ORDER

1.1 Approval of 9/2/14 CPC minutes (Att. 1.1). M/S/C (Butler/Vasquez) to approve the 9/2/14 CPC minutes with one correction. Twelve approved; one abstained.

2.0 ANNOUNCEMENTS

2.1 PLLUMP CPC+ Retreats - L. Gaskin

Dr. Gaskin announced that CPC+ would be convening for two retreats focusing on PLLUMP (Program Location and Land Use Master Plan). The first retreat is scheduled for Friday, November 14, 2014; the second is scheduled for Friday, March 6, 2015. Both retreats will be held from 8:30 a.m.-1:00 p.m., locations to be determined. Two additional participants from the following groups will be invited by their CPC representative to attend the retreats: President's Cabinet, Advancing Leadership Committee, Classified Consultation Group, Academic Senate and Student Senate. For consistency's sake, Dr. Gaskin requested CPC members to choose representatives who can attend both retreats and to inform Paulmena Kelly once their selections have been made.

GUESTS:

C. Alscheimer, Academic Senate

A. Price, Dean, Educational Programs

A. Scharper, Dean, Educational Programs

3.0 INFORMATION ITEMS

None.

4.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS

4.1 2014 Educational Master Plan: Linkage between Strategic Plans and Program-Level Activities – First Reading – P. Butler (Att. 4.1)

Priscilla Butler reviewed attachment 4.1 (Linkage between Strategic Plans and Program-Level Activities). She noted that the Educational Master Plan (EMP) provides a mechanism for analyzing and disseminating Program Review information. Dr. Butler called attention to the third paragraph of attachment 4.1, which states: "Each year, each group (Academic Senate, Deans' Council, College Planning Council, District Technology Committee) will ask at least one program, committee, or department to focus on making institutional progress toward each Strategic Goal, and to report back at the end of the year to a coordinating body designated by the College Planning Council (CPC).

She asked the following questions with regard to the information on attachment 4.1:

- 1) Which coordinating body is designated by CPC to manage this (process)?
- 2) How will the Academic Senate and Deans' Council coordinate on the goals in Strategic Direction 1?
- 3) What is the timeline for documenting and reporting on this process?
- 4) What is the desired end product?
- 5) How will this end product be distributed?

With regard to question #2, Dr. Butler noted that there is potential overlap and duplication of effort between the Academic Senate and Deans' Council. She cautioned that, in the creation of the end product, there is a danger in producing a more cumbersome document. She suggested that the process linking strategic plans to program-level activities maintain the same purposefulness as the EMP. Various methods of achieving this goal were discussed. Further discussion ensued regarding the analysis and evaluation of Program Review data.

Dr. Butler concluded by stating that a template is needed which will define the distribution of work and provide clear structure in facilitating the EMP-program connection.

Dr. Gaskin requested Robert Else to convene a subcommittee of CPC to include Jack Friedlander, Priscilla Butler and Kim Monda to develop a simple process, which may not necessarily entail creating a new coordinating body, to cull or do a meta-analysis of this particular process and to bring it back to CPC for review.

4.2 Long-Range Planning – L. Gaskin

Dr. Gaskin prefaced the discussion by stating that the topic of institutional long-range planning with regard to enrollment and fiscal planning was discussed at the August 5, 2013 CPC retreat. At that time, the issue of carrying capacity was discussed and council agreed that the college should not grow beyond its funded base. She reminded CPC members that when Proposition 30 passed in November 2012, the college was able to adjust to greater funds, but that Proposition 30 expires in 2016.

Dr. Gaskin also reviewed pending and current impacts to the college's budget including: the salary study of collective bargaining for faculty, state-mandated annual increases to STRS and PERS, and COLA uncertainties. On a positive note, she stated that if the governor's proposal is upheld, there will be an estimated \$600,000 in additional funding in non-credit career development and college preparation. Though not in dire straits, Dr. Gaskin cautioned council on the need to be fiscally prudent moving forward. Discussion ensued and other issues that may affect the college's long-range planning included:

- Utilization of hourly employees.
- Efficient use of classroom space and the mix of class offerings.
- Offering two summer sessions in 2015-16.
- Increasing FTES through student retention via student success.
- Meeting the college's funded base.

Processes that will inform the college's future and impact long-range planning include PLLUMP, accreditation, and the implementation of the Educational Master Plan in conjunction with Program Review.

Dr. Gaskin agreed to provide a message and timeline to continue the conversation campus wide. Council agreed to revisit the subject in February 2015.

5.0 ACTION ITEMS

None.

6.0 ADJOURNMENT

6.1 The next scheduled CPC meeting will be held on Tuesday, October 7, 2014 in Room 218C, 3:00-4:30 p.m.

Santa Barbara City College

Sustainable Transportation Incentive Program MAIN CAMPUS PILOT PROGRAM

Overview

SBCC employees could be eligible for a monthly financial incentive to switch from driving alone (Single Occupant Vehicle, SOV) to more sustainable modes of transportation. SBCC's Sustainable Transportation Incentive Program is a pilot program supporting SBCC's Transportation Demand Management Plan (TDMP) and commitment to increased health and sustainability of the SBCC community.

Goals

- Healthier community, cleaner planet, reduction in parking demand
- o Identify best practices and deficiencies in sustainable transportation at SBCC
- Further develop a plan for programming and community engagement to support the shift sustainable transportation for SBCC community members

Eligibility

• Must be full-time faculty/staff willing to utilize alternative transportation methods and meet the requirements below for the duration of the program (January 1 through June 30, 2015)

Requirements

- Participation in program for duration, one focus group, entry/exit surveys
- o Easily track your daily commute days using Traffic Solutions Online™
- Acceptable modes of transportation for incentives include:
 - o Carpool/vanpool/shuttle
 - o Active transport (bicycle, walk, skate, others)
 - o Any form of transit or rideshare (bus/train/Carma™/others)
- \circ Lyft, taxi, or other hired services are NOT included in the program

Incentives

- Incentives are based on what percentage, per month, of SOV commutes a participant replaces with more sustainable modes of transportation.
 - o 30%-60% of trips replaced in a month: \$10
 - o 61%-79% of trips replaced in a month: \$15
 - o 80%-100% of trips replaced in a month: \$25
- o Further, commuters who go the extra mile will receive awards at the end of the program
 - o Greatest mileage and number of trips replaced
 - o Most trips by mode share, most varied modes
 - o Supporter's award
- A guaranteed ride home program will be in place for emergencies and there will also be campus vehicles available for short-term midday rentals.
- One (1) free bicycle tune-up through BiCi Centro (pending)

Resources

- <u>Google maps</u>: great for route-finding, transit directions, and business searches
- MTD: your friendly, local transit system
- Traffic Solutions: our tracking system and community partner
- Fitness tracking apps:
 - <u>Strava</u>: great for fitness tracking your bike rides, walks, skates or runs to campus
 - o Endomondo: also great for fitness tracking
 - Moves: auto-tracking for the casual trip-tracker
- <u>SBCC Commute</u>: keep a close eye on our website for new programs and information



This report is to provide a summary of what has been discussed in the Transportation Alternatives Group (TAG). The TAG discussions included the suggestions received through email and generated by the committee over the last year. Parking is a problem that has existed since the 1960's and while we may not make it disappear, with a concerted effort working together it may be possible to continue to improve parking on the main campus. There are two major groups that park on campus, **employees and students**.

Students - At this time students have the greatest difficulty parking on campus. This is due to the number of students per space. Over 25% of the spaces have been taken out of the pool for employees and carpool. Allowing employees to park in carpool the first two weeks further restricts the access for students. Students pay a fee for a parking permit and also pay a fee that is passed through to MTD to subsidize student access to public transit. Of the 13,500 students on the main campus 6,400 (less than half) purchase a parking permit. Over 7,000 students use the alternatives of parking off campus, riding the bus, walking, biking, skateboarding or motorcycle.

Employees – This report is mostly applicable to employees as students are already utilizing alternative transportation for a large percentage of their trips. There have been no direct deterrents or incentives to employees to driving single occupancy vehicles (SOV) to campus. Employees that use alternatives do it to save money, (car pool or van pool) a desire to be "green" or because it is easier than driving.

As you read this report the complete comprehensive proposal for parking is being prepared. **The proposal will be taken to TAG, PC and CPC within the next month.** This is a summary to provide some understanding of what has been discussed and what will be included in the proposal. *If you want to be part of the discussion join TAG.* **The next TAG meeting, when the preliminary proposal will be presented, is Friday, October 10 (noon-2pm).**

BACKGROUND

Why not add more parking spaces? There are many issues that make this option impossible to implement; but the three primary issues are:

- 1. **Regulatory/Circulation** This involves the Coastal Commission, City of Santa Barbara (City) and Caltrans. The planning for access from the freeway and by the streets to the Mesa, beach and Westside neighborhoods that surround the College, as well as the College itself were not designed for the volume of traffic at peak times. As you know exiting the freeway and the surface traffic on Bath, and Castillo is tough in the morning and afternoon.
 - a. The exit southbound at Castillo is backed up due to the volume of traffic that needs to go right on Castillo. This is exacerbated by the congestion at the Cliff and Montecito intersection.

SANTA BARBARA CITY COLLEGE

- b. The northbound exit at Bath is just as bad due to the congestion at the Haley intersection backing up on the off-ramp.
- c. Caltrans and the City both have plans that are coordinated with the Coastal Commission, but do not include improvements for the on- or off-ramps or surface streets.
 - i. Caltrans concern is that more parking on the campus will bring more cars creating more congestion on the freeway.
 - **ii.** The City has to look at circulation on all streets for all residents in the area and will not allow more parking at the College if it impacts surface traffic. There is a belief in the City that it is the number of parking spaces that drives the street traffic; therefore unless the College decreases the number of parking spaces congestion will remain unchanged.
- d. The Coastal Commission is an appointed body that has it's own agenda, **but always takes the recommendations of the City and Caltrans into their decisions**.
- 2. **Resources/Funding** The state has set into Ed Code that parking cannot be funded from General Fund dollars. This leaves one method for funding the installation, repair and maintenance of parking, **fees**:
 - Students: The state has set the maximum that the state can charge students for "Parking and Transportation" at \$70 per student per semester for Fall and Spring and \$40 for summer or intersessions. The cap for parking alone is \$50 (out of the \$70) per student per semester for Fall and Spring and \$25 (out of the \$40) for summer or intersessions. The College has chosen, through participatory governance, to do the following:
 - 1. **Parking Fee:** The College has charged the students a fee for parking permits; this is limited to allow for the public transit fee paid to MTD through student fees.
 - 2. **Student MTD Pass:** By limiting the fee for parking permits the students have been able to apply the remaining through student vote to MTD. This has allowed MTD to expand their service to the students. It is safe to say that without this support thousands of our students would not have access to the campus.
 - Employees: The College has not charged employees for parking. The state has set the maximum that the state can charge employees for "Parking and Transportation" at \$70 per student per semester for Fall and Spring and \$40 for summer or intersessions. The cap for parking alone is \$50 (out of the \$70) per student per semester for Fall and Spring and \$25 (out of the \$40) for summer or intersessions.
 - 1. Fees can be used as a **deterrent** to reduce the number of cars driving to campus and/or



- **2.** Fees can be used to **support an incentive plan**, alternative transportation, etc.
- 3. Land As you know the College has no room for expansion of classrooms or parking. The open land has been labeled as Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Area (ESHA) or committed to mitigate previous expansion. We cannot go higher or lower to add parking either. The College is coming to terms with the inability to provide growth on the Main Campus.

One possible solution discussed in TAG for reducing parking demand for employees is an incentive plan. An incentive plan is in the process of being developed and will be brought through consultation this fall. Some of the basic components of the plan are highlighted below. An **incentive plan** would reward individuals who utilize **alternative transportation (see below)**. Alternative transportation per this document is defined as not commuting to campus in a single occupied vehicle (SOV).

Funding for Reducing Parking Demand: There is no current funding; the concept proposal is for the College to seed the project through the allocation of ending balances for the first couple of years while a method of ongoing funding is developed.

FEES – Ultimately some of the funding for the incentive plan may include charging fees for parking for all employees. The fees for employees and students are capped by Ed code to \$50 per semester and \$25 for summer. **Students currently pay \$33.25 for parking and \$30.00 for MTD per semester and \$20.00 each for summer session.**

Disincentives – Paying fees automatically reduces the demand for parking. It goes without saying people look for alternatives to paying for parking. **It is important to provide viable alternatives that reduce or eliminate the cost of parking.**

It is important to acknowledge that without a **TRANSPORTATION/INCENTIVE PLAN COORDINATOR** position it is not feasible to maintain a transportation/incentive plan.

Please remember that the points below are just highlights. The plan and implementation timeline will be presented, discussed and developed at the TAG meetings, the final proposal will be brought to consultation, your participation at the TAG meetings is welcome. This report includes many of the suggestions from the transportation alternatives group as well as from the campus at large. Not all of the suggestions are being considered for implementation at this time.



ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION

- 1. **Shuttles parking off campus and transporting to campus:** There have been many alternatives explored for parking off campus, these are all included in the TAG report that was referenced in the attached write-up:
 - a. **Funding for Shuttles** Cost varies greatly from site-to-site and on whether the staffed by SBCC or contracted out.
 - b. **Wake Shuttle (one idea) -** The parking could be free for participants at the Wake, There would be no cost for the spaces. In addition to the cost, the logistics of acquiring the vehicles, hiring the drivers and/or contracting the service to another entity has to be resolved.
 - c. **Garden Street Shuttle** A promising shuttle involves the beach lot at the corner of Garden and Cabrillo. The electric bus comes to the harbor or it is close enough to **bicycle or walk** reducing the demand for a shuttle bus. This still needs City approval, the installation of a bike storage structure and an agreement with MTD, but is hopefully moving forward. There is conflict with Funk Zone parking requirements.
 - d. All of the **other venues** besides Wake (e.g. churches, Elings Park, Las Positas fairgrounds) required a fee for the spaces that would add additional cost and also had restrictions on days and times of use that conflicted with our needs. There is also the concern from the county and City with increased usage of the freeway ramps at Las Positas.
 - e. **Utilization** this is the biggest obstacle to implementing offsite parking. The most severe parking problem is limited in scope to the first part of each semester. There will need to be incentives/disincentives to keep people from driving.
- 2. **Bicycles –** The issues identified with bike ridership are **the hill** of, **bike storage** and the **safety of the roads**.
 - a. The hill can be addressed in several ways.
 - i. First by installing **bike storage facilities**, there have been a couple of locations identified for bike storage that would not require climbing the hill.
 - 1. On campus at the Sports Pavilion,
 - 2. And at the bottom of the steps at Cliff and Rancheria streets.
 - ii. **Electric bikes** for riding to work and up the hill. This mode of transportation is becoming more popular. Electric bikes provide power assist to get up the hills and easier peddling all-around.



- b. **Bike Storage** Would also be available on top of campus on both East and West Campus. Bike storage for the Wake Center could encourage increased use of the shuttle.
- c. **Safety of the roads –** This is both a **short term** and a **long-term** project.
 - i. Short term -
 - 1. The City (and SBCC) has applied for a gran to extend the bike path down Cliff to Loma Alta.
 - 2. The City has agreed to put paving the path from Rancheria up to the curve on the fire road into their LRDP. This would help with Coastal Commission approval and get the bikes off Cliff Drive between Rancheria and Loma Alta for East Campus access.
 - 3. Provide bike route information to the College community.
 - ii. **Long-term –** Work with the City and Caltrans to improve Castillo underpass.
- d. **Bike share and electric bike rentals** are options being considered. This would provide local transportation for commuters.
- e. **Bike Center –** Provide additional repair facilities and assistance with repairs. The College is in discussion with BICI Centro to bring their services on campus.
- 3. **Vanpool or Carpool** The College has an active vanpool and reserves 18% of the spaces for carpool. The College has recently committed resources to managing the vanpool. The services and website are in the process of being updated. Please go to http://www.sbcc.edu/commute/ for additional information.
- 4. **Bus Ridership** The last time SBCC offered bus passes for employee's four employees took advantage of this. Possible ways to renew this partnership:
 - a. Work with MTD to implement "smart cards".
 - i. Record usage to allow for "pay as you go" option.
 - ii. Allow for reimbursement to employees.
 - b. As with the students **by majority vote** the employees could vote for a bus pass. This would require each employee to pay a parking fee each semester and summer session.

COMMUTER SUPPORT

People using alternative transportation need to be assured of a ride home in case of an emergency or for local transportation during the day (dental or medical appointments, shopping, intercampus transport to Schott or Wake, etc.).



- 1. Local Transportation:
 - a. **Electric Cars** the cars would be checked out on an as needed basis. The projection is for one each for the East, West, Schott and Wake campuses.
 - b. **Electric bikes** the electric bikes would be checked out on an as needed basis for local transport.
 - c. **Bicycles** the bikes would be checked out on an as needed basis for local transport.
 - d. **Emergency rides home** There are currently options in place through Transportation that covers this occurrence.

In addition there may be other ways the traffic congestion may be reduced at peak times. These are more costly or difficult to implement.

- 2. **Parking Sensors –** Install parking sensors at each parking space to collect occupancy data. The barrier to this option is the cost of installation and ongoing software license fees. Parking sensors would allow for:
 - a. Potentially move towards **real-time demand based pricing**. As spaces became scarce the price per space would go up.
 - b. This would also **provide location data**, where the open spaces are located in real time.
- 3. **Class Scheduling** There are times when the campus is underutilized. There are many reasons for the underutilization and Ed Programs is looking at the following proposals to determine if they are feasible. Proposed schedule changes are:
 - a. **Stagger start times** This would decrease pressure on the access roads and also free up spaces as instructors vacated the staff lots. E.g. Start every 10 minutes from 7:30 to 8:20, than maintain staggered times through the day.
 - b. **Classes on Friday and Saturday –** Schedule classes on Fridays and Saturdays, reducing classes offered from 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM Monday through Thursday.
 - c. **Offer credit and non-**credit classes at Schott and Wake during open times. This would move some classes off the main campus during peak times.

te	Committee/et.	Purpose
	Presidents Cabinet	Review Summary write up
26-Sep-2014	Transportation Alternatives Group	First presentation of Proposal, assign subcommittee tasks
7-Oct-2014	I CPC	First presentation of proposal
10-Oct-2014	Transportation Alternatives Group	Evaluate Proposal, Assign Subgroups to evaluate specific sections
13-Oct-2014	Presidents Cabinet	Examine incentives
20-Oct-2014	Presidents Cabinet	Examine overall cost of Program
21-Oct-2014	I CPC	First reading
24-Oct-2014	Transportation Alternatives Group	Presentation of Subgroups
3-Nov-2014	Board of Trustees, Fiscal	First reading
4-Nov-2014	I CPC	Second reading
5-Nov-2014	Fiscal & Facilities Departments	Evaluation of Proposal
7-Nov-2014	Transportation Alternatives Group	Finalize Proposal
12-Nov-2014	Fiscal & Facilities Departments	Prepare Implementation for Fiscal
19-Nov-2014	Fiscal & Facilities Departments	Finalize Proposal
21-Nov-2014	1 DTC	Review technical issues
1-Dec-2014	Presidents Cabinet	Approve Final Proposal
1-Dec-2014	Board of Trustees, Fiscal	Second reading
3-Dec-2014	Campus Forum	Presentation of Plan
4-Dec-2014	Campus Forum	Presentation of Plan
4-Dec-2014	Board of Trustees	First reading
11-Dec-2014	Board of Trustees	Second reading

Schedule for the Transportation Program Consultation Process